
Questions	  from	  Webinar:	  Dealing	  With	  RFPs	  

Q: What about a bid where client  (that you work for all the time) might think a meeting is too small 

(price and size) for you to handle? Even though you reassure your client that nothing is too small and 

they still feel guilty contacting you about it. 

A: Clearly they don’t know all about you, but perhaps they do. What have you done to make 

them feel that some jobs are too small? Did you scoff at their budget once? Try to push a bigger 

solution rather than quote the job that was needed? Did you inadvertently make them feel guilty 

about bringing you this kind of opportunity? 

When I work with companies with a similar problem, what I often find is a Big Job approach 

being used on little jobs. Treating a small project like a big one sounds like great customer 

service, but what does it represent from the customer’s point of view? To me, just says that you 

do not have a small job skill set. 

So, maybe the customer is not bringing you those jobs because you aren’t good at them? Maybe 

their guilt and embarrassment is that they don’t want to tell you that is the reason? 

Q: Could you talk about how to Qualify, Position and Close when responding through an online bid 

platform (like Ariba)? 

A: Well, you can’t do it as effectively. If RFPs are the customer taking control, then services like 

Ariba are the ultimate blind bid and courtesy bid all rolled up into one. However, also consider 

that procurement platforms like this provide the appearance of a level system that will get the 

best price for the customer. 

Even if your regular customer uses this tool, nothing is stopping them from having a 

conversation with you about the project. You can then treat the RFP as a Verification or 

Courtesy quote; both use basically the same proposal response.  

Q: What if it is a government bid?  Does this change your approach? 

A: Not really. I work with a lot of clients that do government and GSA work. They tell me that 

they often have fairly normal client-supplier relationships, do non-bid work, and earn fair 

margins. However, sometimes they have to do a lot more paperwork.  

In cases where you have found a blind bid opportuntiy (or were sent one) via a government 

agency, then treat it like a blind bid. Ask for engagement (you might be surprised) and if you 



don’t get any and you really want the work, then use one of the last-ditch blind bid techniques I 

talked about in the webinar. 

Q: Is a conference call considered a “human engagement?” 

A: Barely. Conference calls are great for exchanging basic information and arranging an in-

person meeting or video conference.  In terms of positioning, a phone call is a weak platform for 

building trust and ascertaining a client’s needs. Having said that, a phone call may be adequate 

for a Non-Bid situation with a long-time client. 

I think this question skirts the real issue about the value of the potential client. The “job” in 

question may be secondary to the entire book of business the client represents. A $50,000 board 

room install or a $10,000 event may not warrant a full scale positioning treatment. However, 

clients with these kinds of jobs tend to have more down the road – and that future business is 

worth spending time and money to improve your position as a trusted supplier. 

Q: I spend months and months begging for an RFP and they send one 90 day before the event with no 

time to meet in person. Is this a courtesy bid? 

A:  Two things: One, 90 days is plenty of time to arrange a meeting in person. Even if the 

proposal is due next week, you can extend some sort of invitation that will potentially help your 

negotiating position. Two, if you have been courting this customer for so long, why have you 

never invited them till now? Stop begging for RFPs and instead ask for a meeting without the 

pressure of “making the sale”.  

Q: What are your thoughts on Consultant controlled blind bids? Where you are one of a few invitees. 

A: I presume you mean Design Consultants for projects in the built environment? I think if you 

look more closely, these are not blind bids. Consultants do not earn their keep by putting 

unknown suppliers on the bid list. The actual Buyer may not know you, but the Consultant does 

and if they are worth their salt, they WANT to answer your questions and learn more about how 

you work.  

Building relationships with Consultants is a good way to get on the right bid lists. If you get an 

RFP from a Consultant you don’t know, then ask for the in-person meeting. If you don’t get it, 

then I can pretty much guarantee that you won’t win the job for any reason other than price. 

Q: Are there still AV companies who think revenue is still king? 

A:. There are certainly sales people that believe this! Why? Because they have revenue quotas 

and commission structures that focus on revenue. So yeah, there are lots of companies that seem 



to think that revenue is still king – even ones that say they don’t believe it but then act like they 

do. 

Q: Tom, how do you feel about a blind bid if you know the number of bidders will be limited to a 

smaller group of companies?  Does that make it more worthwhile to participate? 

A:. A blind bid is a blind bid regardless of how many companies there are. The fact that there are 

fewer might mean you have a better chance of influencing things, but the fact remains that the 

buyer is choosing to avoid personal engagement with potential partners. What does that tell you 

about them? 

Q:  Do you ever try to recoup RFP costs in the final budget?  especially when multiple back and forths 

go on during the RFP process. 

A: The cost of developing a client, writing a proposal, and all the revisions are Sales Expense 

and technically, overhead. In other words, they are a cost of doing business that you have to 

expect and provide for. The fact that most companies use Direct Expense resources for this 

process is unfortunate. I think the better question is how to reduce your cost of performing these 

necessary functions. And that sounds like the topic for another webinar! 

Q:  How do we work with non-profits? They are particularly budget conscious and it can be hard to bid 

on their business. 

A: Great question! There are two kinds of non-profits. Some are groups like Associations or 

Schools that tend to be more frugal and price-driven than their corporate counterparts (Not all 

Associations are like that. Some have HUGE budgets and high-finish tastes!). The other kind are 

Charities. These are two completely different clients.  

I find that it helps to look at Charities as partners who can provide you exposure to their donors 

and targets. Your discounts and concessions are “Donations in kind” to the cause. Don’t accept a 

table at the banquet as “payment”. Instead, look at that table as an important marketing 

opportunity. 

Price-driven non-profits are no different from any other price-driven client. Find out why price is 

important and make sure you connect your solution to that need. 

Q: I took part in a forum w/ meeting planners once where they said, with no mincing of words, that they 

have no interest in phone calls or meetings once they send an RFP. Most of the planners in the room 

agreed with this. They'll answer some questions about the RFP via email, but they don't want phone calls 

and they won't ever discuss budget. This seems to be the norm.  How do we deal with this? 



A: Really? I bet they talk to their incumbent. Why wouldn’t they talk to you? Oh yeah, it’s a 

Courtesy Bid. It is also a sign that these Meeting Planners don’t value the work their AV 

suppliers do. Maybe they’ve never had a good one?  

RFPs are about the customer taking control. Remember that the reason they do this is that most 

of the time they receive NO BENEFIT from supplier engagement. What they get is a lot of bad 

questions and empty sales pitches. This reluctance to meet is also an indication that they do not 

trust you. What are you going to do to change this? 

Bottom line, a customer that won’t engage doesn’t warrant access to your team, expertise, or 

proprietary pricing. If the Meeting Planner doesn’t want to talk to you, then they do not past the 

first qualification test. They do not Qualify. Period. You have two options: Politely decline or 

extend an invite for a future date that is not associated with the current RFP. 

Now, stop thinking about the “job” you are not going to bid on and focus on the potential 

“customer” that you need to get to know better. Host an event for Meeting Planners. Provide 

them something of value. Let them get to know you. Earn some trust. 

Skill, technique, finesse, and style are required to Qualify, Position, and Close. Are you equipped 

or prepared to overcome the barriers put up by clients?  
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